
MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

May 29, 2024 
2:00 p.m. 

Classrooms 1, 2 & 3 

 
    

AGENDA 
 
 

I. Call to Order  Barbara Sowada 

 A.  Roll Call  

B. Pledge of Allegiance   

C. Mission and Vision Kandi Pendleton 

D. Mission Moment Irene Richardson, Chief Executive Officer 

II. Agenda (For Action)  Barbara Sowada 

III. Minutes (For Action) Barbara Sowada 

IV. Community Communication  Barbara Sowada 

V. Old Business Barbara Sowada 

A. Medical Staff Bylaws (Remains under review/development, no request for action) 

VI. New Business (Review and Questions/Comments) Barbara Sowada 

A. Board of Trustees Policy – Investment Policy (For Action) Marty Kelsey 

B. Performance Improvement & Patient Safety (PIPS) Plan (For Review) Kari Quickenden, Chief Clinical 

Officer 

VII. Chief Executive Officer Report  Irene Richardson 

VIII. President of the Medical Staff Report Dr. Brianne Crofts 

IX.    Committee Reports 

A. Building & Grounds Committee                       Marty Kelsey 

B. Compliance Committee Kandi Pendleton 

C. Governance Committee Barbara Sowada 

D. Quality Committee Kandi Pendleton 

E. Human Resources Committee  Kandi Pendleton 

F. Finance & Audit Committee         Marty Kelsey 

1. Capital Expenditure Requests (For Action) 

2. I.S. Report 

3. Bad Debt (For Action) 

4. Finance & Audit Committee Meeting Information 

G. Foundation Board Craig Rood 

H. Executive Oversight and Compensation Committee  Barbara Sowada 

I. Joint Conference Committee                                        Barbara Sowada 

X. Contract Review                       Irene Richardson 

A. Contracts Approved by the CEO since Last Board Meeting (For Your Information, No Action Requested) 

1. Fibertech 

2. Martin Ray Laundry Systems 

 

1/129



MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

May 29, 2024 
2:00 p.m. 

Classrooms 1, 2 & 3 

 
    

AGENDA 
 
 

XI. Good of the Order                   Barbara Sowada 

XII. Executive Session (W.S. §16-4-405(a)(ix))       Barbara Sowada 

XIII. Action Following Executive Session Barbara Sowada 

XIV. Adjourn Barbara Sowada 

2/129



OUR MISSION 

Compassionate care for every life we touch. 

 

 OUR VISION 

To be our community’s trusted healthcare leader. 

 

  OUR VALUES 

   Be Kind 

    Be Respectful 

     Be Accountable 

      Work Collaboratively 

       Embrace Excellence 

 

   OUR STRATEGIES 

    Patient Experience 

     Quality & Safety 

      Community, Services & Growth 

       Employee Experience 

        Financial Stewardship 

3/129



 

Minutes of the May 1, 2024, Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 1 of 6 

 

MINUTES FROM THE REGULAR MEETING 

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 

May 1, 2024 

The Board of Trustees of Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County met in regular session on May 1, 

2024, at 2:00 p.m. with Dr. Barbara Sowada, President, presiding. 

CALL TO ORDER 

Dr. Sowada welcomed everyone, including Senator John Kolb, and called the meeting to order.  

Dr. Sowada requested a roll call and announced there was a quorum. The following Trustees were 

present: Judge Nena James, Mr. Marty Kelsey, Ms. Kandi Pendleton, Mr. Craig Rood, and Dr. Barbara 

Sowada. 

Officially present during the meeting: Ms. Irene Richardson, Chief Executive Officer; Mr. Taylor Jones, 

Sweetwater County Commissioner Liaison; Mr. Geoff Phillips, Legal; Dr. Brianne Crofts, Medical Staff 

President. 

Pledge of Allegiance 

Dr. Sowada led the attendees in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

Mission and Vision 

Mr. Kelsey read aloud the mission and vision statements. 

Mission Moment 

Ms. Richardson shared the first Mission Moment for the Board, specifically thanking Dr. Sowada and 

Mr. Kelsey for being gracious enough to cover Governance and excusing her to deal with a family 

emergency. She thanked them for their compassion. 

Dr. Sowada gave accolades to Dr. Tony Pedri from a patient in Sublette County. She said there is another 

person in Pinedale who is happy to come to MHSC. 

AGENDA 

Dr. Sowada requested a change to the Agenda: Move XI. Medical Staff Report to after VII. Chief 

Executive Officer Report. Motion to approve with change was made by Judge James; second by Ms. 

Pendleton. Motion carried. 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

The motion to approve the minutes of the April 3, 2024, regular meeting as presented was made by Ms. 

Pendleton; second by Judge James. Motion carried. 

The motion to approve the minutes of the April 5, 2024, emergency meeting as presented was made by 

Judge James; second by Mr. Rood. Motion carried. 

4/129



 

Minutes of the May 1, 2024, Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 2 of 6 

 

The motion to approve the minutes of the April 8, 2024, special meeting to approve actions of the 

emergency meeting was made by Judge James; second Ms. Pendleton. Mr. Kelsey abstained. Motion 

carried. 

 

COMMUNITY COMMUNICATION 

Dr. Sowada introduced a former Board Liaison and current legislator, Senator John Kolb. She stated he 

is here to give updates and answer any questions the Board may have. Dr. Sowada questioned a special 

ad hoc committee pulled together by Governor Gordon to look at health care in Wyoming. Senator Kolb 

stated likely, Senator Baldwin as Chairman, would be the best person to inquire for information. Senator 

Kolb went on to say how nice it was to see everybody, and that he wanted the Board to be comfortable 

in calling and talking to him about issues. He said MHSC sits squarely in his district and should have a 

direct line to a legislator. He said it is good for the community to be able to give insight on what is 

happening. Senator Kolb said we need to work together. He said information directly from the source is 

always more valuable. Ms. Richardson thanked Senator Kolb for being a great advocate for MHSC. She 

said he has done a great job listening to and helping us. 

Ms. Richardson asked Senator Kolb if he had insight to the fall Pulse Agenda? Senator Kolb stated, in 

his opinion, the Title XXV “revamp” was a failure. He believes it was too big and needs to be attacked 

in connectable smaller parts. He said that in the state of Wyoming, we have facility problems – housing, 

how people are titled, how are we going to prioritize what we are going to do. He said if we built a 200-

bed facility, we’d have 220 people. Also, hospital security for titled patients; “how do you protect staff 

if you can’t charge?” Senator Kolb said incidents need to be reported, even if they can’t be charged. He 

said legislators need to know and we need to work together. Dr. Sowada thanked Senator Kolb for 

visiting, and the invitation as well as reminding him he was always welcome here. 

OLD BUSINESS 

Medical Staff Bylaws 

Dr. Sowada said they remain under review. 

Employee Policy: Non-Discrimination & Anti-Harassment 

Dr. Sowada stated this is in second reading and ready for action. The motion to approve as presented 

was made by Ms. Pendleton; second by Judge James. Motion carried. 

Board of Trustees Bylaws 

Dr. Sowada noted this is reviewed every three (3) years and is the second reading. Mr. Kelsey stated a 

lot of clean-up and statute work was done. He said the decision was to leave the invitation of community 

members to be appointed to Board committees; this will require a policy be drafted. The motion to 

approve the bylaws as presented was made by Ms. Pendleton; second by Mr. Rood. Motion carried. 

Board of Trustees Calendar 

Dr. Sowada stated this is a living document, there will be changes, but the purpose of the calendar is to 

give everybody a “heads up” and a way to plan their annual calendars. Judge James noted the non-

physician providers event is not listed. Dr. Sowada will update and asked if anyone else has any events, 

please reach out. The motion to approve with amended calendar event was made by Ms. Pendleton; 

second by Judge James. Motion carried. 

5/129



 

Minutes of the May 1, 2024, Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 3 of 6 

 

NEW BUSINESS 

No new business for discussion. 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER REPORT 

Ms. Richardson provided an update on the Patient Family Advisory Council (PFAC). The PFAC met 

April 29, and will combine the May and June meeting on June 3, with a plan to celebrate our 5-year 

anniversary on July 3. Person-Centered Care (PCC) training continues to go well. Ms. Richardson said 

we had a recent locums physician that was very impressed by our PCC culture. The Strategic Plan 

dashboard and reports are being worked on. Ms. Richardson said we want to ensure we are doing our 

due diligence regarding Critical Access Hospital (CAH) status. She said we met with the General 

Medical Staff to ensure all were on the same page. We have approved the hiring of additional staff on 

Med/Surg to allow up to 20 admissions to determine if we really need that coverage. Ms. Richarson said 

a Master Plan meeting is scheduled May 17 to receive the report. Surgical Services brought on a locum 

anesthesia and surgical services team to evaluate the need to run a third room. The Interim Emergency 

Department Nursing Director, Ms. Nicole Torres, will be onsite at least until the end of August. Ms. 

Richardson said we held a recruitment event last month and expressed kudos to Ms. Amber Fisk (HR 

Director), Dr. Ann Clevenger (Chief Nursing Officer), Ms. Deb Sutton (Marketing Director), Ms. Lena 

Warren (Community Outreach Director) and Ms. Robin Fife (Clinical Administrative Assistant with a  

huge shout out for a successful event. The Lab Accreditation CAP Survey was conducted April 11-12 

and the staff did an excellent job. Ms. Richardson said budget meetings started April 15, with online 

meetings to review the budget before presenting it to the Finance & Audit Committee and the Board.  

Townhall meetings were held last month with positive feedback. CliftonLarsenAllen has been onsite 

reviewing the finance revenue cycle. Executive Foundation Director interviews are in progress and Ms. 

Richardson said we have narrowed candidates from 8 down to 4. Hospital Week is May 13 with BBQ, 

food trucks, prizes and gifts, pinning ceremony and banquet. Ms. Richardson said she attended the 

American Hospital Association Annual Meeting in Washington DC, and met with Wyoming Senators 

John Barrasso and Cynthia Lumus, as well as Congresswoman Harriet  Hageman. Ms. Richardson said 

it is always good to advocate for ourselves at these meetings. She expressed appreciation to the staff, the 

Board, our providers, and the Commissioners for their work and support. 

Dr. Sowada took a moment to congratulate Ms. Richardson for her designation as Grass Roots 

Representative for the State of Wyoming, noting the “head winds facing rural hospitals are strong.”  Mr. 

Jones shared the requirements for nomination, stating, “We’ve come a long way since Irene took over – 

Excellent job!” 

PRESIDENT OF THE MEDICAL STAFF REPORT 

Dr. Crofts began her report by noting they continue to work on Medical Staff Bylaws. Two medical 

scholarships were awarded from the 15 applicants (7 from SW#1, 8 from SW#2) that applied. The 

Medical Staff will meet May 21 and discuss the Strategic and Critical Access plans. Dr. Crofts reminded 

everyone that May is the one (1) year anniversary of the DaVinci Robot. She said the provider meeting 

agendas now include a Mission Moment. 

Ms. Pendleton questioned whether the use of the robot sped up procedures? Dr. Crofts stated it wasn’t 

necessarily faster, but the view of the procedure is so much better. She said the robot provides better 

quality, which includes options for recording and connection to a hub which records data, as well as in 

6/129



 

Minutes of the May 1, 2024, Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 4 of 6 

 

the moment viewing and assistance from providers long distance. Dr. Croft said she will look into 

providing statistics as well as creating a video. 

 

COMMITTEE REPORTS 

Joint Conference Committee 

 

Did not meet. 

 

Buildings & Ground Committee 

 

All information is in the packet. Mr. Kelsey added that in approximately one month we will be breaking 

ground for the Lab addition. He said there are a lot of important things we will be looking at in terms of 

master planning and financial priorities. Ms. Pendleton questioned if there was additional SLIB money 

available through the State? Ms. Richardson stated the Guaranteed Maximum Price (GMP) came in close 

to estimate but wasn’t sure if there was any other funding available. Senator Kolb said ARPA (American 

Rescue Plan Act) Fund money was available and we should qualify for associated overrun costs. He said 

we would need to contact the Governor’s office. Ms. Pendleton next questioned the Medical Office 

Building entrance and if we anticipated completion by October 2024. Ms. Richardson affirmed, yes. 

 

Compliance Committee 

The minutes are in packet. Ms. Pendleton noted this Committee is good at picking subjects to audit, 

ensuring we are following our own procedures. Currently we are looking at tracking vendor compliance. 

Quality Committee 

The minutes are in packet. Quality is always busy – we have conversations on sepsis, falls and ED 

through-put times, and we are continuing to make progress. 

Human Resources Committee 

The HR Committee just had a special meeting to look at the contract for a salary survey. We will be 

looking at that contract a little later as the Board, but we had two options and chose to go with the more 

comprehensive version, which just made more sense. 

Finance & Audit Committee 

The full report is in packet. 

Capital Expense: Req. # 24-48 Vital Sign Monitors. Eleven (11) rooms have been identified in the 

Med/Surg Unit in need of new monitors. This is a patient safety need. The vendor is Oracle, in the 

amount of $203,415.99. The motion to approve as presented was made by Judge James; second by Ms. 

Pendleton. Motion carried. 

IS Report: Mr. Kelsey urged everyone to look over this report and said it is very informative. 

Bad Debt: The motion to approve the potential bad debt of $1,070,412.49 for April as presented was 

made by Ms. Pendleton; second by Judge James. 

Foundation Board 

No meeting last month. No current updates. 

7/129



 

Minutes of the May 1, 2024, Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 5 of 6 

 

Executive Oversight & Compensation Committee 

Meet on Friday, no updates. 

CONTRACT REVIEW 

 

Contract Approved By The CEO Since Last Board Meeting 

 

Dr. Sowada asked Ms. Richardson to provide a brief overview of the Gallagher contract. Ms. Richardson 

said we received two bids for salary review, but Gallagher provided a more comprehensive review. She 

liked that they will be looking at job descriptions to provide us with better feedback for salary structure. 

She said we have been using the same salary structure since about 2011 and it is time for a change to 

ensure we are competitive. The review will take 6-8 weeks to complete, with a goal to update every 3 

years. Ms. Pendleton stated this was voted on in the Human Resources Committee and all felt like was 

a solid choice. The Board affirmed the choice. 

 

BOARD EDUCATION 

The Governance Institute E-Learning “Board Orientation Course” 

Unfortunately, most reported they were unable to access the information. All will try again in this next 

month. Dr. Sowada said this is a 4-hour course with tests, but it could be done in sessions and you will 

receive a certificate upon successful completion. If members continue to have trouble accessing, please 

reach out to Ms. Cindy Nelson, Executive Assistant.  

GOOD OF ORDER 

Dr. Sowada said the June Board Meeting has been moved to May 29. The June Board Meeting is a busy 

meeting which includes the CEO Evaluation. To not waste time with oral instructions Dr. Sowada will 

e-mail instructions to members. Dr. Sowada reminded everyone that the June Governance Meeting 

decides the committee officers. Please send the recommended slate of officers and your preferred 

committee appointments to Mr. Kelsey. As an FYI, Dr. Sowada said she will be submitting her 

application to the County Commissioners for continuation of Board appointment. 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

The motion to go into executive session at 3:05 p.m. to discuss personnel, litigation and information 

classified as confidential by law was made by Ms. Pendleton; second by Judge James. Motion carried. 

Dr. Sowada said there would be a 10-minute break. 

RECONVENE INTO REGULAR SESSION 

The motion to leave the executive session and return to the regular session at 4:57 p.m. was made by 

Judge James; second by Mr. Rood. Motion carried.  

 

ACTION FOLLOWING EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 

Pursuant to the notice provided in the agenda, the Board of Trustees held discussions and action was 

taken.  

 

  

8/129



 

Minutes of the May 1, 2024, Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 6 of 6 

 

The motion to grant clinical privileges and appointments to the Medical Staff as discussed in executive 

session was made by Mr. Kelsey; second by Mr. Rood. Motion carried. 

 

Credentials Committee Recommendations to the Board of Trustees for Granting Clinical Privileges 

and Granting Appointment to the Medical Staff from April 9, 2024 

1. Initial Appointment to Associate Staff (1 year) 

 Dr. Torah Tomasi, Pediatrics 

 Dr. Andrew Mazzone, Urology 

2. Initial Appointment to Consulting Staff (1 year) 

 Dr. Gregory Parish, Tele-Radiology (VRC) 

 Dr. Amir Arain, Tele-Neuro (U of U) 

 Dr. Blake Newman, Tele-Neuro (U of U) 

 Dr. Nicholas Frost, Tele-Neuro (U of U) 

 Dr. Sindhu Richards, Tele-Neuro (U of U) 

3. Reappointment to Active Staff (2 years) 

 Dr. Christine Raps, Emergency Medicine 

 Dr. Emily Sanchez, Emergency Medicine 

 Dr. William Sarette, Pediatrics 

 Dr. David Liu, Otolaryngology 

 Dr. Ken Holt, OB/GYN 

4. Reappointment to Consulting Staff (2 years) 

 Dr. Katharine Clapham, Cardiovascular Disease (U of U) 

 Dr. Vivek Reddy, Tele-Stroke (U of U) 

 Dr. Krishnan Kartha, Tele-Radiology (VRC) 

 Dr. Thomas Boden, Tele-Radiology (VRC) 

 Dr. Jennifer Ngo, Tele-Radiology (VRC) 

 

The motion to approve the contracts as presented and authorize the CEO to sign them as discussed in 

executive session was made by Ms. Pendleton; second by Mr. Rood. Motion carried.  

 

ADJOURNMENT 

 

There being no further business to discuss, the meeting adjourned at 4:58 p.m.  

      

 

    

  ___________________________________  

  Dr. Barbara Sowada, President 

 

Attest: 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Ms. Kandi Pendleton, Secretary 

 

 

Submitted by Robin Fife 

9/129



10/129



11/129



12/129



13/129



14/129



15/129



 

ORIENTATION MEMO 
 

 
 

Board Meeting Date: May 29th, 2024  
 
Topic for Old & New Business Items:  
 

Performance Improvement and Patient Safety (PIPS) Plan  
 
 
Policy or Other Document: 

 ___X__ Revision 
 ______ New 
 
Brief Senior Leadership Comments:  
Minimal revisions made to the content of the document.  Added STEEP acronym 
under “Quality” definition.  Minor grammatical and formatting changes. Added 
general verbiage around health equity.  Added a few additional responsibilities 
under Quality Department. Minor changes made to PIPS Committee Reporting 
Calendar. Note: FY25 PIPS priorities have been selected and will come to board 
for approval in upcoming months.  

 Board Committee Action:  
Approved by Quality Committee of the Board 05/15/2024 
 
 
Policy or Other Document: 

     ___X___   For Review Only 
 At August Meeting  For Board Action  
 
Legal Counsel Review: 

 ___NA___ In House Comments: 
 _______ Board  Comments: 
 
Senior Leadership Recommendation: 
For first read at this time.  

16/129



DRAFT

Status Draft PolicyStat ID 15742204 

Approved N/A 

Review Due N/A 

Document 
Area 

General - 
Housewide 

Reg. 
Standards 

CMS A-0263,
CMS A-0273,
CMS A-0283 
+ 24 more 

Performance Improvement and Patient Safety (PIPS) Plan 

Mission 

Compassionate care for every life we touch 

Vision 

To be our community's trusted healthcare leader 

Values 

Be Kind, Be Accountable, Be Respectful, Embrace Excellence, Work 
Collaboratively 

Introduction 

Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County (MHSC) is committed to providing compassionate, equitable, 
high-quality care with a strong culture of safety for the best patient outcomes. Our objective is to support 
a culture of safety for our patients and staff. This culture allows us to consistently identify opportunities 
to improve performance and increase safety while maintaining a commitment to responsible 
stewardship of resources as aligned with MHSC's mission, vision, values, and strategic objectives. 

Definitions 

Performance improvement – The systematic process of detecting and analyzing performance problems, 
designing and developing interventions to address the problems, implementing the interventions, 
evaluating the results, and sustaining improvement. 

Patient safety - The prevention of errors and adverse effects to patients that are associated with health 
care. Patient Safety Plan 

Performance Improvement and Patient Safety (PIPS) Plan. Retrieved 05/2024. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/15742204/. Copyright © 2024 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 1 of 16

17/129



DRAFT

Quality - A person-centered commitment to excellence, consistently using best practice to achieve the 
best outcomes for our patients and community. The Institute of Medicine (IOM) outlines six aims for 
healthcare quality which comprise the STEEP acronym: 

I. Safe: avoiding harm to patients from the care that is intended to help them 

II. Timely: reducing wait times and sometimes harmful delays for both those who receive and 
those who give care 

III. Efficient: avoiding waste, including waste of equipment, supplies, ideas, and energy 

IV. Effective: providing services based on scientific knowledge to all who could benefit and 
refraining from providing services to those not likely to benefit 

V. Equitable: providing care that does not vary in quality because of personal characteristics such 
as gender, ethnicity, geographic location, and socioeconomic status 

VI. Patient-centered: providing care that is respectful of and responsive to individual patient 
preferences, needs, and values and ensuring that patient values guide all clinical decisions 

MHSC uses the following terminology interchangeably: quality improvement and performance 
improvement. 

Purpose 

The Performance Improvement and Patient Safety (PIPS) Plan provides guidelines for collecting, 
analyzing, and using data to identify, address, and monitor performance to continually improve the 
quality of care provided by the Hospital. The PIPS Plan encompasses a multidisciplinary and integrated 
approach and is designed to include Leadership, Medical Staff, employees, and the Board of Trustees to 
collaboratively identify, plan, implement and sustain improvement. The previously identified parties 
assess processes, initiate peer review activities, and take appropriate actions that will improve the 
processes and/or systems, in an effort to improve outcomes within the organization. The PIPS Plan is 
approved annually by the Board of Trustees. Functions of the PIPS Plan include expressing the 
foundational concepts that form the basis for MHSC's performance improvement and patient safety 
efforts. In addition, the PIPS Plan outlines the structure and processes that MHSC has developed as a 
framework for participation in performance improvement across the organization. 

Scope 

The PIPS Plan is organization wide and applies to all departments, care, treatment, and services settings 
(including those services furnished under contract or arrangement). This includes Hospital inpatient and 
outpatient services, as well as Sweetwater Memorial Clinics. (Appendix 1 – PIPS Committee Reporting 
Calendar) 

Objectives 

The objective of the PIPS Plan is to allow for a systematic, coordinated, and continuous approach for 
improving performance. (Appendix 4 – PIPS Documentation Tool) 

I. To guide development and implementation of data collection processes that support 

Performance Improvement and Patient Safety (PIPS) Plan. Retrieved 05/2024. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/15742204/. Copyright © 2024 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 2 of 16

18/129



DRAFT

performance improvement. Data areis a fundamental componentscomponent of all 
performance improvement processes. Data can be obtained from internal sources (for 
example, documentation, records, staff, patients, observations, and risk assessments) or 
external sources (for example, regulatory organizations, insurers, and the community). The 
purpose of data collection is to ensure that data necessary to identify, address, and monitor 
areas for improvement are available. 

II. To guide development and implementation of data analysis processes that support 
performance improvement. Collected and validated data must be analyzed to be useful. The 
purpose of data analysis is to determine the status of the Hospital’s quality of care and to 
inform any plans for improvement. 

III. To guide development and implementation of performance improvement processes that 
increase safety and quality. All performance improvement activities must be based on relevant 
data collected and analyzed according to Hospital policies and procedures. Performance 
improvement is a continual process. Performance improvement aims to ensure that the safest, 
highest-quality care is provided to all patients at all times. 

Organization and Accountability 

The PIPS Plan shall involve the coordinated efforts of the Board of Trustees, Senior Leadership Team, 
Medical Staff, Department Directors, Supervisors, Clinical Coordinators, and staff of the various MHSC 
departments and committees. Every employee is responsible for participating in performance 
improvement activities, as appropriate to their job duties. Engagement in quality improvement activities 
is an expectation at MHSC. Activities are prioritized by the PIPS Committee and Medical Staff, with input 
from the Quality Committee of the Board. 

Board of Trustees 

I. The responsibilities of the Board of Trustees, as they relate to the PIPS Plan, include: 

A. Oversee that quality and safety are at the core of the organization's mission 

B. Oversee that quality and safety values are embedded in guiding the organization's 
strategic plan 

C. Oversee that adequate resources (staff, time, information systems, and training) are 
allocated to data collection and performance improvement 

D. Oversee the Hospital's ongoing monitoring, maintenance, and improvement efforts 
for safe, high - quality, and efficient medicalclinical care 

E. Monitor appropriate data collection processes, including methods, frequency, and 
details 

1. By approving the PIPS Plan and accepting dashboard reports and other 
reports addressing specific metrics, the Board approves data definitions 
and frequency and detail of data collection. The Board authorizes 
applicable quality oversight committees to adjust data definitions and data 
frequency as deemed necessary so long as revisions ensure performance 
improvement processes are in no way hindered and applicable definitions 
and frequency are consistent with national, state, or local reporting 
requirements. Based on its oversight responsibilities and at its discretion, 

Performance Improvement and Patient Safety (PIPS) Plan. Retrieved 05/2024. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/15742204/. Copyright © 2024 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 3 of 16

19/129



DRAFT

the Board, may at any time require changes in either frequency or detail of 
data collection. 

a. Frequency of data collection and reporting is determined on a 
case-by-case basis with consideration to improvement priorities, 
sample size necessary for adequate review, and resource 
consideration 

F. Assess the effectiveness of the PIPS Plan 

G. Approves PIPS priorities annually 

H. Assess the effectiveness of the PIPS priorities 

I. Review and approve the PIPS Plan annually 

J. Participate in education regarding the methods of quality management and 
performance improvement 

K. Receive reports of indicators and performance of processes as outlined in this plan 

L. Receive regular reports regarding all departments with direct and indirect patient 
care services and ensure these are monitored, problems are identified and 
prioritized, and appropriate action is implemented 

Senior Leadership Team 

I. The Senior Leadership Team is comprised of the Chief Executive Officer (CEO), Chief Medical 
Officer (CMO), Chief Nursing Officer (CNO), Chief Clinical Officer (CCO), and Chief Financial 
Officer (CFO). 

II. Oversight of a PIPS Plan capable of continuous improvement is a task accomplished in an 
environment fostered by Senior Leadership support. The Senior Leadership Team's 
commitment includes taking accountability for the PIPS Plan's effectiveness and ensuring the 
PIPS Plan requirements are integrated into organizational processes. In addition, the 
commitment includes recognizing the importance of meeting patient needs and the various 
requirements of statutes and regulations that surround and permeate the organization. 

III. The responsibilities of the Senior Leadership Team as they relate to the PIPS Plan include: 

A. Support the implementation, execution, and oversight of this quality framework 

B. Set the scope, priorities, guidelines, and parameters for the PIPS Plan 

C. Align the PIPS Plan with strategic priorities 

D. Set expectations for using data and information 

E. Set priorities for and identify the frequency of data collection and performance 
improvement that include but are not limited to the following: 

1. High-volume processes 

2. High-risk processes 

3. Problem-prone processes 

F. Set priorities for performance improvement based on the following considerations: 

1. Incidence 

Performance Improvement and Patient Safety (PIPS) Plan. Retrieved 05/2024. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/15742204/. Copyright © 2024 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 4 of 16

20/129



DRAFT

2. Prevalence 

3. Severity 

G. Prioritize and ensure that adequate resources (staff, time, information systems, and 
training) are allocated to data collection and performance improvement 

H. Update this plan to reflect any changes, including but not limited to, changes in the 
following: 

1. Strategic priorities 

2. Internal or external environment (such as patient population, community 
health metrics, and so on) 

I. Ensure the PIPS Plan is cohesive and feasible 

J. Periodically approve flexibility and variation in department and committee - 
scheduled reports as well as PIPS priorities, in extenuating circumstances as 
necessary 

K. Ensure accreditation standards adherence 

L. Motivate and support staff to achieve PIPS objectives 

M. Evaluate the effectiveness of the Hospital’s use of data and information 

N. Monitor the effectiveness of the PIPS Plan and the achievement of results 

O. Ensure appropriate follow-up of identified corrective actions not resulting in 
expected or sustained improvement 

P. Communicate the PIPS Plan to staff and the community 

Quality Department 

I. The responsibilities of the Quality Department as they relate to the PIPS Plan include: 

A. Serve as a resource for performance improvement, patient safety, patient 
experience, and regulatory information 

B. Educate MHSC staff about the performance improvement process, patient safety, 
and patient experience 

C. Support staff, including Medical Staff, Leadership, and project leaders, in the 
development and implementation of performance improvement activities, including 
team building and data analysis 

D. Assist with and assure data gatheringcollection efforts are valid, reliable, and 
comprehensive 

E. Attend designated Medical Staff committee meetings and facilitate performance 
improvement processes 

F. Provide accurate and reliable data for Ongoing Professional Practice Evaluation 
(OPPE) profiles for assessment of Medical Staff members 

G. Promote consistency in performance improvement activities 

H. Facilitate selection of annual PIPS priorities via prioritization matrix and multi-

Performance Improvement and Patient Safety (PIPS) Plan. Retrieved 05/2024. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/15742204/. Copyright © 2024 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 5 of 16

21/129



DRAFT

disciplinary discussion 

I. Facilitate and prepare the annual Patient Safety and Performance Improvement 
report which represents a portfolio of safety and performance improvement efforts 
across the organization 

J. Lead various multi-disciplinary committees dedicated to performance improvement, 
patient safety, health equity, and accreditation, including but not limited to PIPS 
Committee, Patient Safety Committee, Health Equity Committee, and Continual 
Survey Readiness (CSR) 

Medical Staff 

I. The Medical Staff provides expertise in meeting appropriate clinical goals, objectives, and 
initiatives for patient care. The responsibilities of the Medical Staff as they relate to the PIPS 
Plan include: 

A. Provide clinical input for targets related to clinical outcomes 

B. Carry out tasks to meet the objectives of the PIPS Plan 

C. Reviews reports to ensure measures are reaching agreed-upon targets in Medical 
Staff meetings 

D. Act upon identified areas for improvement 

E. Provide effective mechanisms to measure, assess, and improve the quality and 
appropriateness of patient care, and the clinical performance of all individuals with 
delineated clinical privileges, accomplished through Ongoing Professional Practice 
Evaluations (OPPE), Focused Professional Practice Evaluations (FPPE), and Peer 
Review Process (refer to Professional Practice Review Process – Medical Staff Peer 
Reviewrefer to Professional Practice Review Process – Medical Staff Peer Review) 

Leadership Team 

I. The Leadership Team is comprised of department directors, supervisors, and clinical 
coordinators. The responsibilities of the Leadership Team, as they relate to the PIPS Plan, 
include: 

A. Utilize performance improvement processes to support MHSC's mission, vision, and 
values 

B. Participate in the collection and analysis of relevant departmental data 

C. Foster a climate of continuous improvement through measurement, data analysis, 
identification, and implementation of changes needed to improve and ensure 
sustainment 

D. Monitor processes known to jeopardize the safety or clinical outcomes of patients 

E. Implement and maintain processes to ensure compliance with applicable 
requirement(s) or standard(s) 

F. Ensure services provided are consistent with MHSC's values and goal of consistently 
providing person-centered care 

G. Document improvement initiatives and progress 

Performance Improvement and Patient Safety (PIPS) Plan. Retrieved 05/2024. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/15742204/. Copyright © 2024 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 6 of 16

22/129



DRAFT

H. Accountable for developing a process improvement project, knowing their scheduled 
presentation dates, and contacting the Quality Department for assistance prior to 
presenting, as necessary 

I. Present department performance improvement project updates to PIPS Committee 
as requested and/or scheduled (Appendix 5 - PIPS Reporting Presentation Template) 

Project Teams, Staff, and Volunteers 

I. The responsibilities of the Project Teams, Department Employees, and Volunteers as they 
relate to the PIPS Plan include 

A. Participate in data collection and analysis activities as well as performance 
improvement activities 

B. Identify and utilize approaches for improving processes and outcomes to 
continuously improve the quality and safety of patient care 

C. Performance improvement project teams may be formed according to employee 
identification of improvements and prioritization 

D. Document improvement initiatives and progress (Appendix 4 - PIPS Documentation 
Tool) 

E. Report improvement initiatives to PIPS Committee as requested or scheduled 
(Appendix 5 - PIPS Reporting Presentation Template) 

PIPS Committee Functions 

I. The PIPS Committee oversees the establishment, implementation, and monitoring of the PIPS 
Plan. The core PIPS Committee shall be comprised of Senior Leadership, Director of Medical 
Office Building Clinics, Director of Acute Care Services, Director of Emergency Services, 
Infection Prevention, Director of Surgical Services, Director of Medical Imaging, Director of 
Women's Health, Director of Pharmacy, Director of Cardiopulmonary, Director of Environmental 
Services, Director of Lab, Director of Nutrition Services, Director of Rehab Services, Director of 
Care Management, Director of Education, Director of Dialysis, Director of Medical Oncology, 
Director of Radiation Oncology, Quality Department, Medical Staff Representative, Security, 
Emergency Management Coordinator, Family Medicine/Occupational Medicine Clinic 
Representative and Patient Safety Representative. Other representatives may attend based on 
identified priorities. 

A. Provide an organization-wide program to systematically measure, assess, and 
improve performance to achieve optimal patient outcomes in a collaborative, 
multidisciplinary, cross-departmental approach 

B. Support activities to promote patient safety and encourage a reduction in 
preventable harm, in collaboration with the Patient Safety Committee 

C. Provide a mechanism to foster collaborative efforts for performance improvement, 
feedback, and learning throughout the organization while assigning responsibilities 
and authority for these processes 

D. Implement all Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) and other 
regulatory bodies' quality management and performance improvement standards 
and maintain accreditation and required certifications 

Performance Improvement and Patient Safety (PIPS) Plan. Retrieved 05/2024. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/15742204/. Copyright © 2024 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 7 of 16

23/129



DRAFT

E. Oversee compliance with accreditation standards and support resolution of 
noncompliance through action plans in coordination with the Continual Survey 
Readiness Committee 

F. Coordinate schedule for department and committee reports 

G. Prioritize improvement projects to address processes based on the following: 

1. Focus on high-risk, high-volume, or problem-prone areas 

2. Consider the incidence, prevalence, and severity of the problems in those 
areas 

3. Affect on health outcomes, patient safety, and quality of care 

4. Additional factors such as resource allocation and accreditation/
regulatory requirements 

5. Utilize a prioritization scoring tool to assist in determining the distinct 
number of improvement projects annually (Appendix 3 - Proposed 
Performance Improvement Project Decision Checklist) 

H. Ensure performance improvement projects incorporate the needs and expectations 
of patients and families 

I. Monitor the status of identified and prioritized performance improvement projects 
and action plans by ensuring additional data collection and analysis is performed to 
assure improvement or problem resolution on a sustained basis 

J. Identify corrective actions not resulting in expected or sustained improvement 

K. Ensure proper continuation of the cycle of creating, implementing, monitoring, and 
evaluating improvement efforts 

L. Identify annual data elements collected on an ongoing basis to prioritize focus areas 
for performance improvement 

M. Review and approve the PIPS Plan each year prior to submitting to the Quality 
Committee of the Board 

N. Oversee annual evaluation of performance improvement project priorities and goals 

O. Oversee annual evaluation of PIPS Plan objectives, scope, and effectiveness, and 
evaluate progress towards strategic plan goals related to quality, safety, and patient 
experience 

P. Communicate information concerning quality, patient safety, and patient experience 
to departments when opportunities to improve exist 

Q. Report, in writing, to leadership on issues and interventions related to adequacy of 
staffing, including nurse staffing. This occurs at least once a year. 

R. Report appropriate information regarding quality, patient safety, patient experience, 
and accreditation to Senior Leadership, Medical Executive Committee (MEC), Quality 
Committee of the Board, and the Board of Trustees to provide leaders with the 
information they need in fulfilling their responsibilities concerning the quality and 
safety of patient care 

1. Specifically, the committee provides data on Multidrug-resistant 

Performance Improvement and Patient Safety (PIPS) Plan. Retrieved 05/2024. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/15742204/. Copyright © 2024 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 8 of 16

24/129



DRAFT

organisms (MDROs), Central line-associated blood stream infection 
(CLABSI), Catheter associated urinary tract infection (CAUTI), 
Clostridioides difficileClostridioides difficile (CDI), Surgical site infection 
(SSI) to key stakeholders, including but not limited to the following: 

a. Leaders 

b. Licensed independent practitioners 

c. Nursing staff 

d. Other clinicians 

S. Provide reports to the Quality Committee of the Board regarding results of 
performance improvement activities 

Risk/Compliance 

I. Risk Management is undertaken by the Quality Department, in collaboration with multiple other 
departments, to identify, evaluate and reduce risk or loss to patients, employees, visitors, and 
the Hospital. The PIPS Committee may assist with quality improvement opportunities 
identified for risk reduction and performance improvement. 

Safety 

I. MHSC is committed to encouraging, promoting, and supporting a culture of safety throughout 
the organization. The purpose of the organizational Patient Safety Program is to improve 
patient safety and reduce risk to patients through an environment that encourages: 

A. Recognition and acknowledgment of risks to patients with regard to medical/health 
care errors 

B. Initiation of actions to reduce these risks 

C. Internal reporting of what has been found and the actions taken 

D. Focus on processes and systems 

E. Minimization of individual blame or retribution for involvement in a medical/health 
care error 

F. Organizational learning about medical/health care error 

G. Support for the sharing of knowledge to effect behavioral changes in itself and other 
healthcare organizations 

H. Appropriate communication and transparency to our patients and families 

II. Please refer to the Patient Safety Plan for further information. Patient Safety Plan 

Methodology 

Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County utilizes processes outlined by the Institute for Healthcare 
Improvement (IHI) Model for Improvement, developed by Associates in Process Improvement. This 
model for improvement includes forming a team, setting aims, and establishing measures, along with 
selecting, testing, implementing, and spreading changes. The Plan, Do, Study, Act (PDSA) Model is used 
to guide tests of change within and throughout the organization. Specific, Measurable, Achievable, 

Performance Improvement and Patient Safety (PIPS) Plan. Retrieved 05/2024. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/15742204/. Copyright © 2024 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 9 of 16

25/129



DRAFT

Realistic, and Time-bound (S.M.A.R.T) goals are encouraged to be utilized when appropriate in setting 
aims and smart objectives. (See Appendix 4-PIPS Documentation Tool and Appendix 7 – IHI's Model for 
Improvement) Performance improvement teams may use other evidence-based methodologies and 
tools as appropriate based on the complexity, scope, and scale of the improvement project. 

I. Performance improvement project teams will use data to determine how action plans are 
developed and will define the frequency of data collection 

Data 

MHSC continually seeks to identify changes that will lead to improved quality and patient safety. 
Annually, each department/discipline shall develop indicators for performance improvement based on 
their identified improvement project. Whenever possible, data collection is a shared activity involving 
staff. The collected data may be organized and analyzed with the assistance of the Quality Department, 
if necessary. 

I. By approving the PIPS Plan and accepting dashboard reports and other reports addressing 
specific metrics, the Board approves data definitions, along with frequency and detail of data 
collection. The Board authorizes applicable quality oversight committees to adjust data 
definitions and frequency of data collection as deemed necessary, so long as revisions ensure 
performance improvement processes are in no way hindered and applicable definitions and 
frequency are consistent with national, state, or local reporting requirements. Based on its 
oversight responsibilities and at its discretion, the Board may, at any time require changes in 
either frequency or detail of data collection. 

A. Frequency of data collection and reporting is determined on a case-by case basis 
with consideration to improvement priorities, sample size necessary for adequate 
review, and resources consideration 

II. Data Collection 

A. The PIPS Committee has identified acceptable data sources for performance 
monitoring and improvement activity. Data sources and mechanisms of identifying 
opportunities for improvement include, but are not limited to: 

1. Risk Assessments 

2. Reports and/or alerts from governmental agencies (for example, Centers 
for Disease Control and Prevention, Occupational Safety and Health 
Administration, Food and Drug Administration) 

3. Accreditation reports 

4. Regulatory rounds and tracers 

5. Culture of Safety survey 

6. Occurrence reports and Good Catches identifying patient safety concerns 
and trends 

7. Staff reporting safety or process concerns to their leaders 

8. RCA (Root Cause Analysis) 

Performance Improvement and Patient Safety (PIPS) Plan. Retrieved 05/2024. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/15742204/. Copyright © 2024 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 10 of 16

26/129



DRAFT

9. FMEA (Failure Mode Effects Analysis) 

10. Patient complaints/grievances 

11. Patient perception of safety and quality 

12. Peer review 

13. Ongoing medical record review 

14. Audit of clinical contracts 

15. Internal audits identifying improvement opportunities 

16. Sentinel event reports and Joint Commission Sentinel Event alerts 

17. Hospital Quality Improvement Contractor (HQIC) 

B. The PIPS Committee collaborates with department managers to perform the 
following activities: 

1. Collect data required by CMS Conditions of Participation and The Joint 
Commission including measures from: 

a. Inpatient Quality Reporting 

b. Outpatient Quality Reporting 

c. Value Based Purchasing 

d. Hospital Readmission Reduction Program 

e. Hospital Acquired Condition Reduction Program 

f. Quality Payment Program – Merit Based Incentive Payment 

g. Hospital Consumer Assessment of Healthcare Providers and 
Systems (HCAHPS) 

h. The Joint Commission ORYX Measures 

2. Collect data on the following: 

a. Improvement priorities, as identified by leadership 

b. Selected outcome indicators (mortality, readmissions, etc.) 

c. Health equity key performance indicators 

d. Procedures, including operative procedures, that place patient at 
risk of disability or death 

e. Clinically significant unexpected postoperative diagnoses, as 
determined by the medical staff 

f. Blood and blood components use 

g. Use of restraints 

h. Use of seclusion 

i. Patient safety issues (ex: falls, self harm) 

j. Resuscitative services, including the following elements: 

Performance Improvement and Patient Safety (PIPS) Plan. Retrieved 05/2024. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/15742204/. Copyright © 2024 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 11 of 16

27/129



DRAFT

i. Number and location of cardiac arrests 

ii. Outcomes of resuscitation, such as return of 
spontaneous circulation (ROSC) and/or survival to 
discharge 

iii. Transfer to higher level of care 

k. Pain assessment and pain management 

l. Rapid response to change or deterioration in a patient condition 

m. Care or services to high-risk populations (patient falls) 

n. National Patient Safety Goals 

o. CMS preventable conditions (Hospital-Acquired Conditions) 

p. Healthcare-associated infections (SSI, CLABSI, CAUTI, MRSA, 
MDRO, C.diff) 

q. AHRQ Patient Safety Indicators (PSI) 

r. Reported and confirmed transfusion reactions 

s. Changing internal or external (e.g. Joint Commission Sentinel 
Event Alerts) conditions 

t. MRI incidents/injuries 

u. Significant adverse drug reactions 

v. Significant medication errors 

w. Adverse events or patterns of adverse events during moderate 
or deep sedation and anesthesia 

x. Complications of care 

3. Collect data on topics in the following areas: 

a. Environment of care 

b. Infection prevention and control 

c. Medication management system 

d. Resuscitation performance, including but not limited to the 
following elements: 

i. Frequency of early warning signs being present prior 
to cardiac arrest 

ii. Timeliness of staff response to cardiac arrest 

iii. Quality of cardiopulmonary resuscitation (CPR) 

iv. Post–cardiac arrest care processes 

v. Outcomes following cardiac arrest 

e. Organ procurement program (conversion rates) 

f. Adequacy of staffing, including nurse staffing, in relation to 

Performance Improvement and Patient Safety (PIPS) Plan. Retrieved 05/2024. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/15742204/. Copyright © 2024 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 12 of 16

28/129



DRAFT

undesirable patterns, trends, or variations in performance 

g. Incidents related to overexposure to radiation during diagnostic 
computed tomography examinations 

4. Include the following information when recording data: 

a. Data source 

b. Collection frequency 

c. Reporting frequency 

d. Report audience 

e. Responsible department(s) 

f. Indicators for intervention 

III. Data Reliability and Validity 

A. Collected data need to be accurate, complete, and reliable. The PIPS Committee has 
established the following expectations for any data used to monitor or improve 
Hospital performance: 

1. Data samples will undergo auditing 

2. Data sources will be regularly checked using established procedures 

3. Re-abstraction will occur on a data sample 

IV. Data Analysis 

A. The PIPS Committee does the following: 

1. Engages the assistance of relevant departmental management and/or 
staff to collect and analyze data 

2. Develops goals and benchmarks in conjunction with stakeholders with 
attention to past performance, national performance data, external 
benchmarks, or comparative databases 

3. Compares internal data over time to identify levels of performance, pattern 
or trends in performance, and variations in performance 

4. Utilizes statistical tools and techniques to measure, analyze, and display 
data (e.g., run charts, flow charts and control charts). Preferred PIPS data 
displays include dashboards, run charts, and control charts, as applicable 

5. Analyzes data using methods that are appropriate to the type of data and 
the desired metrics, which include but are not limited to: 

a. Benchmark: a comparison and measurement of a health care 
organization's metrics against other national health care 
organizations. MHSC utilizes the National Average when 
available. 

b. Target Goal (SMART Goal): targeted goals define interim steps 
towards the stretch goal. Target goals may change frequently as 
progress is made toward stretch goal. Target goals help form a 

Performance Improvement and Patient Safety (PIPS) Plan. Retrieved 05/2024. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/15742204/. Copyright © 2024 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 13 of 16

29/129



DRAFT

concrete plan of action in order to make the stretch goal a 
reality. 

c. Stretch Goal: inspires us to think big and reminds us to focus on 
the larger picture. This goal should exceed the benchmark. 
MHSC utilizes the National Top 10% when available. 

6. Analyzes aggregate data to identify opportunities for improvement and 
actions to improve the quality of processes 

Communication 

I. To communicate changes made based on data analysis and to sustain improvements, 
performance Performance improvement is communicated through the following resources 
(Appendix 6 - Communication Plan): 

A. Quality Committee of the Board 

B. PIPS Committee 

C. Leadership meetings 

D. Medical Staff meetings 

E. Staff meetings 

F. Department white boards, electronic communication, and communication books 
may be utilized to display results of monitoring and internal performance 
improvement activities 

Confidentiality 

I. WY Stat 35-2-910. Quality management function for health care facilities; confidentiality; 
immunity; whistle blowing; peer review. Subsection A. 

II. All quality and patient safety data, materials, and information are private and confidential, shall 
be considered the property of Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County, and as such is 
protected by state and federal health care quality statutes. 

III. Confidentiality shall be maintained, based on full respect of the patient's right to privacy and in 
keeping with Hospital policy and state and federal regulations governing the confidentiality of 
quality and patient safety work. 

IV. Information, data results, reports and minutes generated by all quality management activities 
will be handled in a manner ensuring strict confidentiality 

V. Confidential information may include but is not limited to: Medical Staff committee minutes, 
organizational quality improvement committee minutes, electronic data gathering and 
reporting, and incident/occurrence reporting 

VI. Quality improvement activities will occur in ways that preserve confidentiality of information 
consistent with policy and established law 

VII. The Joint Commission is an independent contractor. Any event reported to The Joint 
Commission is performed under the auspice of the Quality Committee. 

Performance Improvement and Patient Safety (PIPS) Plan. Retrieved 05/2024. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/15742204/. Copyright © 2024 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 14 of 16

30/129



DRAFT
Attachments 

Appendix 1 - Reporting Calendar 

Appendix 2 - Committee Reporting Structure 

Appendix 3 - Proposed Performance Improvement Project Decision Checklist 

References 

Agency for Healthcare Research and Quality. Retrieved from https://www.ahrq.gov/talkingquality/
measures/six-domains.html 

Institute for Healthcare Improvement [IHI], 2015; Langley, et al., 2009 

LRG Healthcare. (August, 2019). Quality Management Plan. Unpublished internal document, 
LRGHealthcare. 

Quality Assurance & Performance Improvement (QAPI). (n.d.). Retrieved from https://hsag.com/qapi 

Ransom Memorial Health. (March, 2019). Quality Improvement Plan. Unpublished internal document, 
Ransom Memorial Health. 

Summary of Compliance Concerns & Strategies for Compliance and/or Improvement: Healthcare 
Strategies. August 2020 

The Joint Commission. (20232024, Jan). PI performance improvement plan. PolicySource hospital and 
critical access hospital. PolicySource: P&Ps for Compliance with Joint Commission Requirements | Joint 
Commission Resources (jcrinc.com) 

Whitney Matson. (N.A). Quality Management System Plan. Unpublished internal document, St. John's 
Health. 

Wyoming Laws. (2015). Title 35, Public Health and Safety. Wyoming Statute W.S. §35-2-910 (1977). 
Quality management functions for health care facilities; confidentiality; immunity; whistle blowing; peer 
review. Retrieved from Thomson Reuters WestlawNext. 

Approval: 

Reviewed and Approved: 

Performance Improvement and Patient Safety Committee – May 9th, 2023 05/14/2024 

Medical Executive Committee - May 23rd, 2023 

Quality Committee of the Board – June 21st, 2023 05/15/2024 

Board of Trustees – August 2nd, 2023 

Performance Improvement and Patient Safety (PIPS) Plan. Retrieved 05/2024. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/15742204/. Copyright © 2024 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 15 of 16

31/129



DRAFT

Appendix 4 - PIPS Documentation Tool 

Appendix 5 - PIPS Reporting Presentation Template 

Appendix 6 - Communication Plan 

Appendix 7 - IHI Model for Improvement.pdf 

Appendix 8 - FY 2024 PIPS Priorities 

Approval Signatures 

Step Description Approver Date 

Reg. Standards 

CMS A-0263, CMS A-0273, CMS A-0283, CMS A-0286, CMS A-0297, CMS A-0308, CMS A-0309, CMS 
A-0411, CMS A-0508, TJC LD.01.03.01, TJC LD.01.05.01, TJC LD.02.01.01, TJC LD.02.02.01, TJC 
LD.02.04.01, TJC LD.03.01.01, TJC LD.03.02.01, TJC LD.03.03.01, TJC LD.03.04.01, TJC LD.03.05.01, TJC 
LD.03.06.01, TJC LD.03.07.01, TJC LD.03.09.01, TJC LD.03.10.01, TJC PI.01.01.01, TJC PI.02.01.01, TJC 
PI.03.01.01, TJC PI.04.01.01 

Performance Improvement and Patient Safety (PIPS) Plan. Retrieved 05/2024. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/15742204/. Copyright © 2024 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 16 of 16

32/129



JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC

STANDING COMMITTEE REPORTS 

Antimicrobial Stewardship (biannual) X X

Code Blue Committee (biannual) X X

Continual Survey Readiness (quarterly) Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1

E.H.R. OPS/Informatics (biannual) X X

Emergency Management (biannual) X X

EOC (biannual) X X

Health Equity (biannual) X X

Pain Task Force (biannual) X X

Patient Flow (biannual) X X

Patient Relations/Grievances Committee (biannual) X X

Patient Safety (quarterly) Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1

Person Centered Care (quarterly) Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1

PICC Line (annual) X

Sepsis (every other month) X X X X X X

Value Analysis Committee/Materials Management (annual) X

Workplace Violence (biannual) X X

MEDICAL STAFF COMMITTEE REPORTS

Blood Utilization Committee (biannual) X X

Infection Control (quarterly) Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1

Radiation Safety (biannual) X X

Trauma (biannual) X X

Utilization Management - Readmissions (biannual) X X

Patient Experience Survey Data

Clinics - MOB X X X X

Clinics - 3000 X X X X

Emergency Department X X X X

ICU X X X X

Medical Oncology X X X X

Med/Surg X X X X

Radiation Oncology X X X X

Surgery Department X X X X

Women's Health X X X X

DEPARTMENT REPORTS 

Behavioral Health (biannual) X X

Cardiopulmonary (biannual) X X

Care Management - Discharge Planning (biannual) X X

Chronic Care Manager (biannual) X X

Clinic - MOB (biannual) X X

Clinic - 3000 (biannual) X X

Dialysis (biannual) X X

Dietitians (annual) X

Quarter 3 Quarter 4 Quarter 1 Quarter 2

FY 2025 MHSC PIPS Committee Reporting Schedule 

Monthly Meeting: Second (2nd) Tuesday of every Month, 1:00 p.m. - 3:00 p.m., via Microsoft Teams

Quality Materials - Confidential 

33/129



JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC

DEPARTMENT REPORTS 

Education (annual) X

Emergency Department (biannual) X X

Employee Health (annual) X

Environmental Services (biannual) X X

Fiscal Services (annual) X

Health Information Management (annual) X

Human Resources (annual) X

ICU (annual) X

Information Services (annual) X

Laboratory (biannual) X X

Medical Imaging (biannual) X X

Medical Oncology (biannual) X X

Medical Staff Services (annual) X

Medical Surgical (biannual) X X

Nutrition Services  (biannual) X X

Outpatient Infusion (annual) X

Patient Access (biannual) X X
Patient Financial Services (biannual)
(Central Scheduling, Pt Financial Navigation, & Translation & Interpretive Services) 

3 3

Pharmacy (biannual) X X

Physician Recruitment (annual) X

PR/Marketing (annual) X

Radiation Oncology X X

Rehab Services (biannual) X X

Sleep Lab (annual) X

Surgical Services (biannual) X X

Volunteers, Community Outreach (annual) X

Women's Health (biannual) X X

FACILITY WIDE REPORTS 

Hospital Compare Preview Reports (quarterly) X X X X

MHSC Star Rating, Patient Safety, and Other Standards Dashboards (monthly) X X X X X X X X X X X X

Patient Experience/HCAHPS Dashboards - by Dept. (monthly) X X X X X X X X X X X X

ORYX Report (quarterly) X X X X

Quality Reporting Program Results (HRRP, HACRP, VBP, QPP - annually) X X

Staffing Adequacy Report (annual) X

PIPS RELATED ITEMS 

PIPS Plan X

Patient Safety Plan X

Annual PIPS Priorities Selection X

Annual Patient Safety and Performance Improvement Report (Annual Evaluation) X

Total Reports: 18 14 11 19 17 15 18 14 15 19 15 13

Monthly Meeting: Second (2nd) Tuesday of the Month, 1:00 p.m. - 3:00 p.m., Classrooms 1-3 or Virtual

Quarter 3 Quarter 4 Quarter 1 Quarter 2

Quality Materials - Confidential 

34/129



JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC

STANDING COMMITTEE REPORTS 

Pain Task Force Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3

Person Centered Care Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3

Antimicrobial Stewardship Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3

Continual Survey Readiness Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3

Patient Safety (to include: EHR Ops, Code Blue, SMPT, restraint/seclusion, behavioral 

health, suicide screening)
Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3

EOC Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3

MEDICAL STAFF COMMITTEE REPORTS

Infection Control Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3

Tissue and Blood Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3

Trauma Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3

Radiation Safety Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3

Utilization Management/Readmissions Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3

PROJECT TEAM REPORTS 

Sepsis Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3

ED Patient Flow Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3

DEPARTMENT REPORTS  - Quarterly 

Women's Health Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3

Medical Surgical Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3

ICU Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3

ED Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3

Surgical Services Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3

Medical Imaging Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3

Clinic Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3

Radiation Oncology/Medical Oncology Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3

Outpatient Infusion Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3

Rehab Services Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3

Cardiopulmonary Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3

Legal Counsel (Contracted Services Report) Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3

FACILITY WIDE REPORTS 

Donor Connect X X X X

Patient Experience/HCAHPS Dashboards X X X X X X X X X X X X

MHSC Organization Dashboard X X X X X X X X X X X X

Hospital Compare Preview Reports X X X X

Quality Reporting Program Results (HRRP, HACRP, VBP, QPP - Annually) X X

Culture of Safety Survey Results (Biennially) X

FY 2022 MHSC Quality Committee of Board Reporting Schedule 

Monthly Meeting: Second (2nd) Tuesday of the Month, 1:00 p.m. - 2:30 p.m., Classrooms 1-3

Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3 Quarter 4 

35/129



Audit of Peer Review and OPPE/FPPE (Annually) X

Audit of Credentialing Process (Annually) X

Audit of Clinical Contract Quality Review (Annually) X

Accreditation Reports (Triennially Hospital, Biennially Lab)

FMEA, RCA, Serious Safety Events (as they occur)

PLAN APPROVAL (Annual)

PIPS Plan X

36/129



MEMORANDUM 
 

To:  Board of Trustees 
From:  Wm. Marty Kelsey 
Subject: Chair’s Report…May Building and Grounds Committee Meeting 
Date:  May 24, 2024 
 
Oncology Suite Renovation…Phase I has not been completed yet. The State Board of Pharmacy 
had concerns with wording on a letter. They will review again sometime in June. Jerry Johnston 
indicated that work should be completed on Phase II in a couple more months. 
 
Medical Imaging Core and X-Ray…Design work continues with Plan One and ST & B. Hopefully, 
the project can be bid sometime in June. The ER X-Ray room work is now complete. 
 
Laboratory Expansion Project...Project is moving ahead as scheduled. Groathouse Construction 
has received subcontractor bids.  
 
MOB Entrance Project…It is estimated that bids can be received sometime in August. The 
project is projected to cost about $2.1 million with SLIB paying about half. I asked about patient 
ingress and egress to the MOB. Mr. Wheatley indicated there will always be an entrance for 
patients to go in and out with the proviso that when concrete work is done and alternative 
entrance will have to be identified. 
 
Foundation Area Renovation Project…Staff is awaiting Master Planning results and final 
decisions before what services will be moved into this space. 
 
Master Plan…It is planned that the B & G Committee will be presented with the Master Plan 
recommendations followed by the full Board presentation at the July Board meeting. 
 
The next meeting of the Committee will be held on June 25th at 2:00 p.m. 
 
As usual, for more detailed information, please refer to the B & G Committee minutes in the 
packet. 

37/129



 

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 
Building and Grounds Committee Meeting 

May 21, 2024 

 
 

The Building and Grounds Committee met in regular session via Zoom on May 21, 2024, 

at 2:30 PM with Mr. Marty Kelsey presiding. 

 

In Attendance:  Mr. Marty Kelsey, Trustee, Chairman  

Mr. Craig Rood, Trustee 

Ms. Irene Richardson, CEO 

   Ms. Tami Love, CFO 

   Mr. James Horan, Director of Facilities 

Mr. Gerry Johnston, Maintenance Supervisor/ Project Manager 

Mr. Will Wheatley, PlanOne Architects 

 

 

Mr. Kelsey called the meeting to order and asked for a mission moment to be shared. 

 

Mr. Kelsey asked for a motion to approve the agenda. Mr. Rood made a motion to approve the 

agenda. Ms. Richardson seconded; motion passed.  

 

Mr. Kelsey asked for a motion to approve the minutes from the April 16, 2024, meeting. Mr. Rood 

made a motion to approve the minutes. Mr. Horan seconded; motion passed.  

 

Maintenance Metrics 

 

Mr. Johnston said the Days Overdue are slowly dropping as they continue to clean up some old 

workorders.  For April, there were 77% completed.  Mr. Kelsey asked about staffing and Mr. 

Johnston said things were decent.  

 

 

Old Business – Project Review 

 

Oncology Suite renovation 

 

Mr. Kelsey asked if Phase 1 of this project was complete.  Mr. Wheatley said it has not been 

completed as there was some confusion with the State and Board of Pharmacy regarding some 

wording in the final letter.  The Board of Pharmacy will need to come back in June.  Mr. Kelsey 

asked about the timeline as Phase II can’t begin until Phase I is complete.  Mr. Johnston said 

there is probably another 2 months of work to be done.  The contractor is still trying to make the 

deadline. Mr. Wheatley will follow up with a new schedule if it changes.  

  

Medical Imaging Core and X-ray 

 

Mr. Wheatley said they are in full design and development phase with ST&B.  They hope to get 

this project out to bid in late June.  Mr. Kelsey asked about the ER x-ray room.  Mr. Johnston 

said it is complete and they are using the new room as of last week.  

 

 

 

38/129



 

 

Minutes of the May 21, 2024, Building & Grounds Committee 

Page 2 

 

 

Laboratory Expansion project - SLIB 

 

Mr. Wheatley said they have submitted responses to OHLS and only have one minor submittal 

outstanding and then they will have the State approval to start.  Groathouse is mobilizing now and 

is working with the City of Rock Springs for permits.  Due to the size, there will be an additional 

sewar tap fee.  Mr. Kelsey asked if all subcontractor bids had been received.  Mr. Wheatley said 

they have and Groathouse should be issuing agreements.  There were no surprises with the 

subcontractor bids. The groundbreaking is scheduled for May 23.   

 

MOB Entrance – SLIB 

 

Mr. Wheatley said this project is a couple of weeks behind the Imaging project.  They are pushing 

to meet the SLIB October deadline to have it under contract. The estimate to have bids in August.  

Mr. Kelsey asked if will be doing the traditional Design-Bid and if there are contractors available.  

Mr. Wheatley said this project is small enough to get other contractors but is concerned about the 

local subcontractor availability.  There are 3 large scale projects starting in Sweetwater County.  

Mr. Kelsey asked if this project was mostly electrical or mechanical.  Mr. Wheatley said there is 

some mechanical and electrical but mostly site work with the changes to parking and entrance.  

Ms. Richardson confirmed the total project is around $2.1 million with half being through the 

SLIB grant.  Mr. Kelsey asked how the Clinic entrance will be impacted during the project.  There 

is a side door that leads directly into the stairwell.  Mr. Wheatley said the project will need to be 

phased so we can always keep a portion open.  However, there will be concrete work at the entrance 

where we may need to use an alternative entrance.  Mr. Rood said we will need to communicate 

these changes to our staff and patients.  

 

Foundation Area Renovation 

 

Mr. Johnston said we may wait until the new office space in the Lab project is complete so we 

don’t displace the staff.  We are also still waiting on the Master Plan to help with deciding what 

services we want to move into this newly renovated space. 

 

Master Plan 

 

Ms. Richardson and Ms. Love were unable to attend the presentation from PACT but have set up 

a time to review the information.  Mr. Horan said he was very impressed with PACT and their 

information for future projections and where healthcare is going.  He said they have 

recommendations for changes within the existing facility and not just building new space.  We 

would like to have them present to the full Board at the July 1st meeting.  Mr. Kelsey asked if this 

committee could see the Master Plan presentation before going to the full Board. 

 

U of U suite renovation 

 

Ms. Love recommended removing this from the agenda.  There may still be some renovations 

needed to move our clinics into that space, but it will not be done under the University of Utah 

agreement. 

 

39/129



 

 

Minutes of the May 21, 2024, Building & Grounds Committee 

Page 3 

 

 

 

New Business 

 

No new business was discussed. 

 

 

Other 

 

The next meeting is scheduled for Tuesday, June 25, 2024; 2:00P – 3:30P.   

 

Mr. Kelsey adjourned the meeting at 3:14 pm. 
 

 

Submitted by Tami Love 

40/129



 

        Minutes  

Governance Committee 
May 20, 2024 

 

Present: Irene Richardson, Marty Kelsey, and Barbara Sowada 

Zoom meeting called to order at 2:00 pm  

Minutes had been previously approved 

 

Meeting called to order at 2:00 pm by Barbara Sowada; all members present. 

 

Old Business 

 Board Policy: Approval Process for a Community Member to be Appointed to a Board Committee. 

Draft of policy reviewed and edited. Edited policy is attached. Will review at June meeting before taking to 

Board for first read.  

 

New Business 

1. Board Policy: Guidelines for Negotiating Physician Contracts. Following changes were made: 

a. Uncapitalize physician and contract throughout policy 

b. D CME Stipend: Change to read “An unused portion may be carried to the next calendar year at 

the discretion of the CEO. 

c. Terms and Provisions: change to read abide by all hospital policies. 

Meeting adjourned at 3:10 pm. 

Next meeting is scheduled for June 3rd at 2:00 pm.  

Respectfully submitted, 

Barbara J. Sowada, Ph.D. 

41/129



Executive Summary – Quality Committee of the Board 

PROVIDED BY  Kari Quickenden and Jennifer Roger 

REPORTING DATE May 2024 Quality Committee Monthly Meeting  

General 
Highlights 

 Aimee Urbin provided an update on the CAP Survey.  

 Kari Quickenden presented the April Care Compare Refresh Report. 

 Kari Quickenden presented the PIPS Plan for review.   

FY 2024 
PIPS 

Priorities 

 Patient Experience – The patient experience back to basics toolkit has been updated to 
include suggestions from leaders for additional information. Employee check-ins led by the 
Person-Centered Care Committee began in April. 

 FY24 Patient Experience Priority #2 has been tabled. This priority focused on the design of a 
three-year strategic plan for patient experience.  Since patient experience is a pillar of the 
organizational strategic plan with specific initiatives and objectives, the team and select MHSC 
Board of Trustees members concluded it was not appropriate to focus on this priority at this 
time. The PIPS Committee selected two items pivotal to patient experience for FY25 PIPS 
Priorities. The Quality Department will bring them to the Board of Trustees for approval in the 
upcoming months. 

 
 

Patient 
Safety 

 The Medical Device Failure Policy was reviewed and approved by the committee.  

 Aggregate occurrence report data was reviewed. There have been 219 reports entered into 
Synergi for CY 2024. 51 of those reports were Good Catches.  

 Patient perception of safety data from January to March 2024 was reviewed from Press 
Ganey.  

 In 2024 there have been 6 total patient falls, with 1 inpatient fall, and 0 patients have been 
injured from falling at MHSC.  

Medication 
Safety 

 Medication History Updates – Clinics and ED. The nurse directors continue to work with their 
staff in their respective departments on updating histories. With the transition to Interim 
Pharmacy Director, the team recognized an issue with the medication history data. The data 
has been validated and the updated data was included in the report.  

 
Infection 

Prevention 

 We continue to work toward the sustainability of appropriate documentation for isolation 
precautions. We have also started a work group that will investigate the increase in hospital 
acquired infections (HAI), Clostridium difficile (C. diff) cases. This multidisciplinary work group 
will look at causes as well as implement different solutions to reduce C. diff cases in house. 

 
 
 
 

PIPS 
Committee 

 We heard about wonderful improvement projects happening in multiple departments and 
committees. The Blood Utilization Committee continues to work towards a blood 
contamination rate of less than 1% using the Kurin diversion device. The Lab is working to 
achieve 100% compliance in documenting patient results and charges for urine dipstick point 
of care data entry at College Hill. Chronic Care Management continues to track recommended 
wellness screenings offered in 2023 and completed in 2024. Interpretive Services is working 
on improving communication between providers, nurses, and reception by creating an 
interpreting services pool within Cerner. The Patient Flow workgroup is working to decrease 
the amount of time for a patient to be moved from the ED to an inpatient unit to less than 110 
minutes. The Person-Centered Care Committee has implemented monthly employee check-
ins for every department organization wide to improve the person-centered care culture. 
Patient Financial Navigation continues their work on identifying patients receiving high-cost 
medications in the Outpatient Services department by increasing co-pay assistance revenue. 
Cardiac & Pulmonary Rehab continues to focus on providing monthly CORE education for 
patients. Physical & Speech Therapy continues to track improvement of patient satisfaction on 
therapy goals.  Cardiopulmonary is working on compliance with ventilation equipment 
physician orders. Care Management continues to focus efforts on reducing the readmissions 
rate to 3.5-4%. Central Scheduling is working on improving encounter accuracy at the time of 
pre-registration to reduce delays in billing and receiving payment. Emergency Management is 
working on improving emergency management education and training organization. The 
Patient Access Team is working on decreasing the number of errors when creating patient 
encounters to improve the patient experience and assist with collections.  

 

42/129



43/129



44/129



45/129



46/129



47/129



48/129



49/129



50/129



51/129



52/129



53/129



54/129



55/129



56/129



57/129



58/129



59/129



60/129



61/129



62/129



63/129



64/129



65/129



66/129



67/129



68/129



69/129



70/129



71/129



72/129



73/129



74/129



75/129



76/129



77/129



78/129



79/129



80/129



81/129



82/129



83/129



84/129



85/129



86/129



87/129



88/129



89/129



90/129



91/129



92/129



93/129



94/129



95/129



96/129



97/129



98/129



99/129



100/129



101/129



102/129



103/129



104/129



105/129



106/129



107/129



108/129



109/129



110/129



111/129



112/129



113/129



114/129



115/129



116/129



117/129



118/129



119/129



120/129



121/129



122/129



123/129



124/129



125/129



126/129



127/129



128/129



129/129


	Agenda - May 29, 2024 Mtg
	Mission and Vision
	Minutes
	Board of Trustees Policy – Investment Policy
	Orientation Memo Template 2024 PIPS Plan May 29 2024
	Performance Improvement and Patient Safety -PIPS- Plan-Draft-Changes May 29 2024
	PIPS FY 2025 PIPS Committee Reporting Calendar - UPDATED 5.15.24
	Building and Grounds Committee...Chair&apos;s Report...May 2024 Marty Kelsey
	Building and Grounds Comm Minutes May 21 2024 Tami Love
	Governance Committee
	Quality Committee
	FY24_58 Control Heads for Soft Water System Capital Expenditure Request
	FY24_59 Storage for Davinci Video Capital Expenditure Request
	I.S. Report
	F&A 1 for May 29 2024
	F&A 2 for May 29 2024
	F&A 3 for May 29 2024
	Fibertech
	Martin Ray Laundry Systems

